2007R01416/TRC

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : Criminal No.
V. : 18 U.S.C. 8§ 922(d) (1),
: 922(9) (1), 924()(2),
ANTOINE DOBSON, ask/a “Ant,” : 924(d)(1), and 8§ 2;
and LARRY LANGFORDDAVIS, a/k/a: 28 U.S.C. 8§ 2461(c)
“Lay Lay” :

INDICTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,

sitting at Newark, charges:

COUNT ONE
DISPOSING FIREARM AND AMMUNITION TO CONVICTED FELON
1. At all times relevant to Count One of this
Indictment:

(a) Defendant ANTOINE DOBSON, who often goes by

the nickname “Ant,” was employed as a Deputy United States
Marshal assigned to the Southern District of New York.

(b) Defendant LARRY LANGFORDDAVIS, who often goes
by the nickname “Lay Lay,” was a close friend of defendant DOBSON
and someone whom defendant DOBSON represented to be a family
member In certain documentation. Defendant LANGFORDDAVIS also
was a convicted felon, having been convicted in the Superior

Court of New Jersey of the following crimes punishable by

imprisonment for a term exceeding one year:



Date of Conviction Crimes Sentence of
Imprisonment
Received

June 2, 1994 Conspiracy to Commit [ 7 years
Aggravated Assault —
2" degree (N.J.S.A.
2C:5-2, 12-1(b) (1))

June 2, 1994 Unlawful Possession |4 years
of a Handgun — 3"
degree (N.J.S.A.
2C:-39-4a)

June 2, 1994 Aggravated Assault — |7 years
2" degree (N.J.S.A.
2C:12-1(b) (D))

June 2, 1994 Robbery — 15t degree |15 years
(2C:15-1) and
Conspiracy to Commit
Robbery — 1s* degree
(N.J.S.A. 2C:5-2,
15-1)

May 24, 2002 Possession of Heroin |4 years
with Intent to
Distribute in a
School Zone — 3"
degree (N.J.S.A.
2C:35-7)

May 24, 2002 Resisting Arrest — 1 year, 6 months
4t degree (N.J.S.A.
2C:29-2)

(c) Defendant ANTOINE DOBSON owned a Glock model
27 .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, bearing serial number
LSK711, that he purchased in or about November 2007. When
purchasing the firearm, defendant DOBSON certified, on a document
with United States Marshals Service letterhead and under penalty
of perjury, that he would “use the requested firearm[] and/or

large capacity ammunition feeding devices* for official use and



that the firearm and/or large capacity ammunition devices [were]
not being acquired for personal use or for transfer or resale.”
Defendant DOBSON also possessed Speer .40 caliber hollow-point
ammunition, which had been issued to him by the United States
Marshals Service.

2. From on or about January 5, 2008, to on or about
January 19, 2008, in Union County, in the District of New Jersey,
and elsewhere, defendant

ANTOINE DOBSON, aZk/a “Ant,”

knowingly disposed of a firearm and ammunition, namely a Glock
model 27 .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun, bearing serial
number LSK711, loaded with ten (*“10") rounds of Speer .40 caliber
hollow-point ammunition, to LARRY LANGFORDDAVIS, knowing and
having reasonable cause to believe that LARRY LANGFORDDAVIS had
been convicted of a crime punishable by Imprisonment for a term
exceeding one year.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

922(d)(1) and 924(a)(2) and Section 2.



COUNT TWO
POSSESSION OF FIREARM AND AMMUNITION BY CONVICTED FELON

1. Paragraph 1 of Count One of this Indictment is
hereby realleged and incorporated as if set forth in full herein.

2. From on or about January 5, 2008, to on or about
January 19, 2008, in Union County, in the District of New Jersey,
and elsewhere, defendants

LARRY LANGFORDDAVIS, a/k/a ‘“Lay Lay,” and
ANTOINE DOBSON, aZk/a “Ant,”

did knowingly possess in and affecting commerce, a firearm and
ammunition, namely a Glock model 27 .40 caliber semi-automatic
handgun, bearing serial number LSK711, loaded with ten (*“10")
rounds of Speer .40 caliber hollow-point ammunition, and aided
and abetted the possession of the firearm and ammunition by
defendant LARRY LANGFORDDAVIS, who had been convicted of a crime
punishable by imprisonment for a term exceeding one year in a
court in the Superior Court of New Jersey.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections

922(g) (1) and 924(a)(2) and Section 2.



FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS

1. The allegations contained in Count Two of this
Indictment are iIncorporated by reference as though set forth in
full herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture pursuant to
Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(d)(1) and Title 28,
United States Code, Section 2461(c).

2. Upon conviction of the offense iIn violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 922(g)(1) and Section 2 set
forth in Count Two of this Indictment, the defendant,

ANTOINE DOBSON, ask/a “Ant,”
shall forfeit to the United States any firearm and ammunition
involved iIn or used In the commission of that offense, including

the following:

a Glock model 27 .40 caliber semi-automatic handgun,
bearing serial number LSK711, and ten (*“10"™) rounds of
Speer .40 caliber hollow-point ammunition.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section

924(d)(1) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c).

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

CHRISTOPHER J. CHRISTIE
United States Attorney



